
 

COUNTY COMMISSION 
 

Ron Sellers 

District 1 

Member 

Ron Hirst 

District 2 

Chair 

Daniel P. Friesen 

District 3 

Vice-Chair 

Courthouse 

206 W. 1st Avenue 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

 
 

AGENDA 
Commission Chambers 

Tuesday, February 23, 2021, 9:00 A.M. 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer 
 

III. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair 
 

IV. COVID-19 Update 

A. Karla Nichols, Health Director, and Karen Hammersmith, Interim Health Officer. 
 

V. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda.  

Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5 

minutes per item. 
 

VI. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda  
 

VII. Consent Agenda  

If any Commissioner would like further discussions or explanation of any item they may ask that it be removed 

from the consent agenda for additional consideration. 

A. Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units). 

B. CRF Vouchers totaling $31,857.88. 

C. Change Orders 2021: 85-134. 

D. Minutes of Meetings for December 2020 and January 2021. 

E. Appointment of Terry Ketchum as Clerk on Hayes Township Board. 

F. Appointment of Karla Nichols as Reno County’s Representative on Horizons Mental Health Board of 

Directors. 

G. Public Works’ purchase of a 2021 Dodge Ram 4500 1.25Ton Cab & Chassis from Allen Samuels at a cost 

of $46,892.00. 

H. Public Works’ purchase of a 2021 Landoll 25Ton Hydraulic Trailer from Larry’s Trailer Sales at a cost of 

$56,995.00. 

I. Public Works’ purchase of a 2021 Massey Ferguson Tractor from John Schmidt & Sons, Inc. at a cost of 

$63,300.00 after trade. 

J. Public Works’ purchase of a 2021 Massey Ferguson Tractor and a Diamond 22’ Boom Mower from John 

Schmidt & Sons, Inc., at a cost of $126,142.00 after trade. 

K. Public Works’ purchase of a 2021 John Deere Track Excavator from Murphy Tractor & Equipment Co., at 

a cost of $173,561.22 after trade. 

L. Public Works’ purchase of a John Deere Commercial Zero Turn Mower from Prairieland Partners at a cost 

of $6,150.00. 

M. GLMV Proposal for Design Services of the Reno County Courthouse at a cost of $8,800. 

i. Action – Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

Friesen  Sellers Hirst  



 

 

VIII. Public Hearing 

For the purpose of evaluating the performance of the $132,000.00 CDBG-CV Grant No. 20-CV-056 

A. Open the Hearing 

B. Discussion 

C. Close the Hearing 

D. Action Item 

i. Authorize Program Close-Out of CDBG-CV Grant No. 20-CV-056. 

 

IX. Business Items 

A. Noxious Weed Annual Management Plan and Eradication Progress Report by Don Brittain, Public Works 

Director. 

B. Emergency Management Update by Adam Weishaar, Director. 

C. Horizons Mental Health Quarterly Update by Mike Garrett, Chief Executive Officer. 

D. Peak Agenda Software by Randy Partington, County Administrator. 

E. Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems Proposed Regulations. 

i. Public Comment: Pro Proposed Regulations – 30 minutes. 

ii. Public Comment: Anti Proposed Regulations – 30 minutes. 

iii. Commission Discussion - Review of Regulations. 

 

X. County Administrator Report 

 

XI. County Commission Report/Comments 

 

XII. Adjournment 



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07C







































































































shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07D











































































































shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07E







 

COMMISSION 
Ron Sellers 

District 1 

Member 

Ron Hirst 

District 2 

Chair 

Daniel P. Friesen 

District 3 

Vice-Chair 

Courthouse 

206 W. 1st Avenue 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

 

 

 

February 23, 2021 

 

 

Mike Garrett 

Horizons Mental Health Center 

1600 N. Lorraine St., Suite 202 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

 

 

Subject:  Board of Directors of Horizons Mental Health 

 

 

The Reno County Board of Commissioners appoints Karla Nichols to serve as Reno County’s representative on 

the Board of Directors of Horizons Mental Health.   

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

     

Ron Hirst, Chair 

 

 

 

     

Daniel P. Friesen, Vice-Chair 

 

 

 

     

Ron Sellers, Member 

 

 

 

 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07F



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07G











shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07H













shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07I















shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07J





















shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07K

















shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07L







Revised: 10/26/2020 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

 

 

INFORMATION: 

(From and Issue) 
Agreement for Professional Design Services of the Reno County Courthouse 

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator 

AGENDA DATE: February 23, 2021 

BACKGROUND The Reno County commissioners and county administrator met during a public 
goal setting session on January 30, 2021.  One of the items that was discussed 
was a proposal from GLMV Architecture to provide a courthouse space 
utilization study, detailed in the attached agreement.  Harlen and I reached out to 
and met with the architects in mid-January to have a preliminary discussion on 
what could be done at the courthouse to better utilize some space for commission 
meeting rooms, conference rooms and offices.   
 
The courthouse is a historical property that must go through various levels of 
approval to allow for modification and updating.  GLMV is the company that 
provides the services for the current courthouse improvements, which is why we 
discussed this option with them.  There are items listed in the attached study as 
goals that summarize what we discussed in January as options, knowing that this 
was just a starting point on what might be possible with the courthouse space.    
 
During the meeting with commissioners, the issue of a space study was 
discussed with the commission agreeing that this was needed.  No vote was 
taken to approve the agreement, so this item is before you for consideration. 
 

ALL OPTIONS 

 

1. Approve and authorize for the county administrator to sign the agreement 
with GLMV Architecture for services costing up to $8,800. 

2. Deny the request. 

 
RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends option #1 that is pursuant to the discussion with the county 

commission at their special goal setting session on January 30, 2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT The cost of up to $8,800 will be paid for out of the county’s general fund for 

courthouse maintenance. 

 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07M



 

1525 E. Douglas          Wichita, KS 67211          T 316.265.9367          architects@glmv.com          www.glmv.com 

 
 
 
 
January 27, 2021  
 
via e-mail 
 
Mr. Harlen Depew 
Director of Maintenance and Purchasing  
4 W. 10th Avenue 
South Hutchinson, KS 67501 
 
Re: Agreement for Professional Design Services 
 Reno County Courthouse Space Utilization Study 
 206 W. 1st Avenue 
 Hutchinson, KS 67501 
 
Dear Harlen: 
 
At our meeting on January 22, 2021 with you and Randy Partington (Reno County Administrator), we 
discussed several goals of the County Commissioners with respect to accessibility and the use of 
space/reassignment of space in the courthouse. We agreed that the best course of action at this preliminary 
stage would be for GLMV Architecture to perform a space utilization study as described below. 
 
PROJECT: 
 
This Project is for determining the best use of space in several areas of the courthouse building and to add 
accessibility features to the second-floor mezzanine.  Areas of concern are portions of the first floor, the 
second floor mezzanine, and portions of the fourth floor. To better accommodate County staff, departments 
in these areas could be rearranged and/or relocated, and the County is seeking ideas for new configurations. 
Goals for this space study are: 

 Provide an accessible path of access to the second floor north mezzanine in order to better 
utilize that space.  Presently, the north mezzanine has stair access only from the first floor.  
An accessible path could be in the form of a connecting walkway from the south mezzanine, 
or perhaps adding an elevator from the main lobby. 

 Provide several space plans for the second floor north mezzanine that would include a 
conference room(s), offices or systems furniture arrangements. 

 A new, larger space is needed for the County Commission meetings.  A temporary space 
has been created at the west side of the first floor area.  One solution may be to provide a 
more permanent enclosure for this space. Another suggested space for the Commission 
meetings is the Veterans’ room in the basement. 

 Presently, the southwest corner office of the second floor south mezzanine houses Legal 
Services.  This office could be reconfigured to provide space for a mezzanine walkway.  Also, 
Legal Services could be moved to the fourth floor. 

 Presently, the north portion of the fourth floor houses the Department of Court Appointed 
Special Advocates (CASA).  Occupied only part time, this department could be moved to 
perhaps the second floor Legal Services space or to a portion of the second floor north 
mezzanine. 

 The offices of the County Commissioners presently occupy the north portion of the first 
floor, on the north side of the main lobby, and includes space for the receptionist, the 
Commission meeting room and workstation space for a few Commissioners. Space is 
needed for private offices for each of the Commissioners, a private conference room for 
their deliberations, and accommodations for the receptionist. 

 The Human Resources (HR) department and a break room are currently housed in the 
northeast corner of the first floor, adjacent to the County Commissioner’s office. This 
department could be relocated, and the space could be allotted the County Commissioners. 



Mr. Harlen Depew 
January 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
The Courthouse is a listed property on the Register of Historic Kansas Places and the National Register of 
Historic Places. It is understood that this Project may be eligible for State Historic Tax Credits and that 
Reno County may apply for these credits. As such, the Project must meet the requirements of the Secretary 
of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties.  Funding for this Project has not yet 
been identified. 
 
GLMV Architecture will conduct a space utilization study to offer Conceptual Plans for arranging the 
above-mentioned goals. Three to four Plan layouts showing alternative arrangements for the different 
departments will be reviewed by the Commissioners and department heads to arrive at a final Concept Plan.   
 
PROJECT TEAM: 
 
It is our understanding that our office will be working and coordinating our work with you as the primary 
contact. It is our intention to address all correspondence on this Project to you unless we are directed 
otherwise. 
 
For GLMV Architecture, I will be the designated Principal-in-Charge, and Christy Wendler will be the 
Interior Designer. Our team will also include additional architectural staff as necessary to complete your 
Project in a timely manner. Correspondence should be addressed to my attention and copied to Christy. 
 
SCOPE OF BASIC SERVICES: 
 
This section describes the general scope of Services: 
 

1. Over the course of approximately two weeks, visit the site and measure/verify the existing 
floor plans. 

2. Floor Plans would be created in digital software (Revit) to show needed space 
arrangements in the affected areas only.  To be cost effective, we intend to layout exterior 
walls, the column grid, and major interior walls and doors.  Office furniture layouts and 
more detail would be shown in the affected areas. 

3. Prepare three to four concept designs for review with you and needed department heads 
and/or Commissioners. Concept Designs will be Floor Plans only and generally show office 
arrangement, doors, circulation and office furniture layout.  We have allocated four review 
meetings for this phase. 

 
COMPENSATION: 
 
Professional Fees will be a lump sum amount of Eight Thousand Two Hundred Dollars ($8,200), plus 
estimated Reimbursable Expenses in the amount of Six Hundred Dollars ($600). 
 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES: 
 
Professional Fees do not include Reimbursable Expenses as outlined in the following paragraph. 
 

Reimbursable Expenses include transportation, lodging and subsistence for out-of-town 
travel, reproduction of documents, shipping, postage, messenger or courier service 
charges, purchase of maps and similar documents, and other like expense, and as may be 
authorized by the Client, professional renderings, scale models, mock-ups, off-hour 
expenses and the fees of any special consultant retained by the team. Billings for such 
Reimbursable Expenses include an administrative fee of 15 percent. 

 
PAYMENT: 
 
GLMV Architecture shall submit invoices on a monthly basis for Compensation and Reimbursable Expenses 
due for Professional Services performed under this Agreement. Payment shall be due and payable within 



Mr. Harlen Depew 
January 27, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
30 days from the date of our invoice, and invoices unpaid after 31 days shall bear interest from the date 
payment is due at the prime rate plus 1.5 percent. 
 
GLMV reserves the right to suspend Services upon seven calendar days’ written notice to the Client if the 
Client is in breach of the payment terms or other material breach of this Agreement. 
 
GLMV shall have no liability to the Client, and the Client agrees to make no claim for any delay or damage 
as a result of such suspension caused by any breach of this Agreement by the Client. Upon receipt of 
payment in full of all outstanding sums due from the Client or curing of such other breach which caused 
GLMV to suspend Services, GLMV shall resume Services and there shall be an equitable adjustment to the 
remaining Project schedule and Fees as a result of the suspension. 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES: 
 
Services requested beyond the scope of Basic Services described above shall be considered Additional 
Services. Additional Services shall be provided if requested and authorized in writing by the Client and will 
be performed for a lump sum amount to be mutually agreed to by both parties prior to beginning. 
Reimbursable Expenses for Additional Services shall be compensated as outlined above in Reimbursable 
Expenses. 
 
EXCLUDED SERVICES: 
 

1. Services and Drawings are intended to be Schematic Design Drawings only and do not 
include Design Development Drawings or Construction Document Drawings. 

2. Our scope of Basic Services includes architecture only and does not include mechanical, 
electrical, or structural engineering. 

3. Interior design, finishes and fixtures, furniture and equipment selections. 
4. Digital drawings and/or field measurements other than the spaces outlined above. 

 
REFURBISH DISCLAIMER: 
 
The Documents prepared by the Architect will be prepared based upon reasonable assumptions derived 
from existing information provided by the Client and from observations of the existing conditions by the 
Architect without the benefit of field measurements and invasive investigation made undesirable by 
expense and inconvenience to the Client. It is understood and agreed that unforeseen conditions uncovered 
during the progress of the Work may require changes in the Work, resulting in additional cost and delay for 
which the Client shall maintain sufficient contingency. Services required by such changes shall be provided 
as Additional Services per this Agreement. 
 
PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS: 
 
Our Services are based on the following assumptions: 
 

1. We have included Fees for limited field measuring of the existing building/space. Historic 
Drawings provided by the Owner will be utilized for this Project and relied upon for 
accuracy. 

2. Professional renderings are not included. 
3. Value engineering studies and life-cycle cost analysis studies are not included. 
4. Off-site improvements are not included. 
5. Specialty consultants not listed in this Agreement are not included in our Fee. 
6. Electronic files to the Client are not included in our Fee. A release is required by the Client. 

 



Mr. Harlen Depew 
January 27, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

1. The Client will appoint a representative for this Project as the day-to day-contact, and 
decisions will be made in a timely fashion to keep the Project on schedule. 

2. The Client will provide any existing drawings, documents or studies prepared by others for 
use by the Architect. The Architect shall be able to rely on the accuracy of the information 
provided. 

3. The Client will make payments within 30 days of the date of the invoice from the Architect. 
 
SALES TAX: 
 
In the event that the laws of the State of Kansas should change in such a way so as to require the Architect 
to charge sales tax for the Services and Reimbursable Expenses to be invoiced to the Owner under this 
Agreement, any such sales tax due shall be payable by the Owner in addition to the Compensation otherwise 
due under this Agreement. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
 
The schedule for the Project will be based on a mutually agreeable timeline. The schedule shall include 
allowances for periods of time for the Client’s review, and approval of submissions by authorities having 
jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
This Agreement is valid for 60 days from the date of the Agreement. This Agreement shall be deemed 
accepted by you if, at your request, we begin work on this Project, either by e-mail, telephone conversation 
or written correspondence, notwithstanding your failure to sign and return the signed Agreement and/or 
issue a Purchase Order. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this Agreement. If this Agreement is acceptable, please sign below 
and return a copy to our office. We are ready to start work upon receipt of this signed Agreement. 
 
Sincerely, Accepted: 
 
GLMV Architecture Reno County, Kansas 
 
 
   
Mike Seiwert, AIA, LEED AP Signature 
Director of Community Architecture 
   
MMS/am Title 
 
c: 19139R21001/1.1   
 Date 



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #08







shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #09A













shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #09B













Horizons Mental Health Center 
FY21Q2 Reno County Commission Meetings   

 

Agenda 
 

FY21Q2 County Commission Meetings: 
 

1. Orientation document for new Commissioners 
 

2. Board representative from Reno County 
a. This position is the Reno County representative on our Board of Directors 

 
3. Financials 

a. FY21 December Income Statement 
i. Month and YTD 

 
b. Stimulus funding 

i. Stimulus funds have all been recognized 
 

c. Significant increase in grant work; and funding 
i. COVID hotspot through KDADS from SAMHSA 

1. Criteria is county must have 5% of the positive cases in the State 
ii. Current applications 

1. Mental Health Awareness for first responders 
2. CIT training for all law enforcement personnel 

 
4. Impact of COVID 19 

a. New consumers reluctant to come in 
 

b. Acuity is becoming higher 
i. More crisis cases 

 
c. Are moving more towards in person 

i. New variants of virus are concerning 
 

d. Financial Impact 
i. Significant as evidenced by financials 

ii. Expense reduction 
 

5. State Issues 
a. State revenue has not dropped off as anticipated  

 
b. Many new members of legislature 

i. Goal is to help them understand how issues that come before them may 
impact those we serve 

1. To help them make informed decisions 
 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #09C



c. Budget will be primary issue 
i. Governor’s budget holds us harmless 

ii. No new funding anticipated 
 
 

d. State Mental Health Hospitals (SMHH) 
i. Moratoriums  

1. Osawatomie SMHH for almost 6 years 
2. LSH for the last several months 

ii. Budget concerns  
1. Reduction in bed capacity at LSH 

 
6. Jail data 

a. Audra Goldsmith 
 

7. Consumer Satisfaction Survey 
a. October 2020 

 
 

 
 
   



1  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

An Overview of the Community Mental 
Health Center System of Care in Kansas 

January 2020 

Association of Community Mental Health Centers of 
Kansas (ACMHCK) 



2  

Who Are We? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 26 licensed CMHCs
 Combined staff of over 4,500
 Providing behavioral health services in every 

county of the state in over 120 locations.

 
Together, we form an integral part of 
the total mental health system in Kansas. 



3  

 
 

 

 CMHCs provide home and community-based, 
as well as outpatient mental health services, 
in all 105 counties in Kansas, 24-hours a day, 
seven days a week.

 CMHCs are the local Mental Health Authorities 
coordinating the delivery of publicly funded 
community-based mental health services.

About CMHCs… 



4  

 
 

 

 As part of licensing regulations, CMHCs are 
required to provide services to all Kansans 
needing them, regardless of their ability to 
pay. This makes the community mental
health system the “safety net” for Kansans 
with mental health needs. 

About CMHCs… 



5  

 
 

Our Primary Goal 
 To provide quality care, treatment, and 

rehabilitation to individuals in the least 
restrictive environment.

 To provide services regardless of economic 
level, age, or type of illness.

 To provide treatment at the community level 
in order to allow individuals to function in 
their own homes and communities at a 
considerably reduced cost to them, third- 
party payers, and/or the taxpayer.



6  

 
 

 

 The CMHC system is state and county funded 
and locally administered. Consequently, 
service delivery decisions are made at the 
community level, closest to the residents that 
require mental health treatment.

 Each CMHC has a defined and discrete 
geographical service area.

About CMHCs… 



 

 
 

 
 

CMHC Catchment Areas 



8  

 
 

Shared Governance 
A partnership between State and Local 
Government: 
 The CMHCs are more than just another

group of providers. They are the county’s 
legally delegated authority to manage 
mental health care.  These CMHCs function 
as the local mental health authority. 

 The Kansas mental health system is a 
relationship of shared governance between 
two governmental entities – state 
government and county government.



9  

How exactly is county 
government involved? 
 Determining and establishing the governing 

structure for CMHCs. 
 In the early formation of the CMHCs the State gave the 

County Commissions authority to develop mental health 
services for the people living in their county by either 
creating their own mental service department, or 
contracting for community mental health services with a 
non-profit corporation. 

 Reno and Kingman contracted with Horizons in 1968. Pratt, 
Harper and Barber counties contracted with Horizons over 
the next few years. 

 These five counties make up the service area for Horizons. 



10  

How exactly is county 
government involved? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 County government has the following 
roles with respect to CMHCs: 
 Collectively, the 105 counties contribute 

approximately $25 million annually toward 
community-based mental health services. 

 Oversight of local CMHC system via their 
appointed representatives on the Board of 
Directors of the CMHCs. 



11  

 
 

 
• 19-4001: Community mental health centers and community facilities for the mentally 

retarded; services of such facilities; services provided on contract by mental retardation 
governing board; approval by secretary of social and rehabilitation services of facility 
establishment. The board of county commissioners of any county or the boards of county commissioners 
of two (2) or more counties jointly may establish a community mental health center, and/or community 
facility for the mentally retarded, which shall be organized, operated, and financed according to the 
provisions of this act. The mental health center may render the following mental health services: Out- 
patient and inpatient diagnostic and treatment services; rehabilitation services to individuals returning to 
the community from an inpatient facility; consultative services to schools, courts, health and welfare 
agencies, both public and private, and conducting, in collaboration with other agencies when practical, in- 
service training for students entering the mental health professions, educational programs, information and 
research. The community facilities for the mentally retarded may render, and a mental retardation 
governing board which contracts with nonprofit corporations to provide services for the mentally retarded 
may provide, the following services: Pre-school, day care, work activity, sheltered workshops, sheltered 
domiciles, parent and community education and, in collaboration with other agencies when practical, 
clinical services, rehabilitation services, in-service training for students entering professions dealing with 
the above aspects of mental retardation, information and research. It may establish consulting and/or 
referral services in conjunction with related community health, education, and welfare services. No 
community mental health center, and/or facility for the mentally retarded, shall be established in said 
community after the effective date of this act unless and until the establishment of the same has been 
approved by the secretary of social and rehabilitation services. 



12  

What is the State’s role? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Licensure of CMHCs. 
 Contracting with CMHCs. This began in 

the 1990s as a result of the Mental 
Health Reform Act of 1991. 

 Oversight of the state-wide public 
system. 

 Focus on target populations. 



13  

 
 

 

 Since FY 2007, CMHCs have seen a
steady increase in the overall number of 
individuals served by the CMHCs – a 
26% increase. The majority of these 
individuals are uninsured. 

 
 
 
 

  

The Numbers 



15  

The Numbers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The CMHCs provide care to over 
130,000 Kansans per year. Patient 
loads have doubled over the past ten
(10) years, largely as a result of 
deinstitutionalization. 



16  

 
 

 

 $15 million reduction in Mental Health Reform

grants since FY 2008 – a 50 percent 
reduction. Funding has been partially 
restored. The CMHCs are now at the FY06 
level of State funding. 

 $33.4 million all funds in Medicaid reductions 
(10% rate reduction in FY 2010; Medicaid 
spending reduction through a directive from 
SRS for FY 2011 and FY 2012).

The Numbers 



17  

 
 

 
 

History of KDADS Mental Health Expenditures 12-21-2016 

 
 

  
 

FY 2007 

 
 

FY 2008 

 
 

FY 2009

 
 

FY 2010 

 
 

FY 2011

 
 

FY 2012

 
 

FY 2013

 
 

FY 2014

 
 

FY 201 5

 
 

FY 2016

 
 

FY 2017

 
 

FY 2018

 
 

FY 2019
 
 
CMHC CONTRACT 

 
 

49,487,342 

 
 

40.182.158 

 
 

37,773,438

 
 

32,161,966 

 
 

28,440,091 

 
 

29,170,985

 
 

33,596.794

 
 

33,508,294

 
 

33,508,294

 
 

34,562,560

 
 

35,691,874

 
 

35,691.874

 
 

35,691,874
 
 
CMHC State Aid 

 
 

10.233.297 

 
 

10,233.297 

 
 

10,233,297

 
 

10,233.297 

 
 

10,233197 

 
 

10,233.297

 
 

10,233.297

 
 

10.233.297

 
 

10,233,297

 
 

10.233.297

 
 

10.233.297

 
 

10,233,297

 
 

10,233,297
 
 
CMHC Consolidated Grants 

 
 

36.788.244 

 
 

27,483,060 

 
 

25.074.340

 
 

19,462,868 

 
 

10.890.993 

 
 

10.890.993

 
 

15,890.993

 
 

10.890.993

 
 

10,890,993

 
 

10.890.995

 
 

10.890.993

 
 

10.890.993

 
 

10.890.993
 
 
Mental Health Block Grant to CMHC 

 
 

2,465.801 

 
 

2.465.801 

 
 

2,465,801

 
 

2,465801 

 
 

2.465.801

 
 

3.039.992

 
 

2,465.801

 
 

2,377.301

 
 

2.377.301

 
 

2339.776

 
 

2.377.301

 
 

2.377.301

 
 

2,377,301
 
 
Grants for At-Risk Persons CMHC 

     
 

4,850,000

 
 

5,006,703

 
 

5.006.703

     
 

-

 
 

-
 
 
GOV MR EXPANSION - Grants for At-Risk Persons CMHC 

        
 

10.006.703

 
 

10.006.703

 
 

10.006.700

 
 

10.006.703

 
 

10.006.703

 
 

10.006.703
 
 
MH Screens - State Hospital/Uninsured 

          
 

1.091.792

 
 

2.183.580

 
 

2.183.58U

 
 

2.183.580
 
 
CMHC SUBTOTAL 

 
 

49,487,342 

 
 

40,182,158 

 
 

37,773,438

 
 

32,161,966 

 
 

28,440,091 

 
 

29,170,985

 
 

33,596,794

 
 

33,508,294

 
 

33,508,294

 
 

34,562,560

 
 

35,691,874

 
 

35,691,874

 
 

35,691,874

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

             

 
 
PRTF 

 
 

23.474.712 

 
 

39.080.764 

 
 

43.280.482

 
 

49,096,097 

 
 

53,733,644 

 
 

36.735.359

 
 

29.152.593

 
 

26.197.935

 
 

24,438.049

 
 

31.839.458

 
 

30,565,880

 
 

30.871.538

 
 

31.180.254
 
 
NFMH (>= SFY2018 FFS only 

 
 

13.571.494 

 
 

14.484.069 

 
 

15.578.223

 
 

15,814,601 

 
 

18.562.101 

 
 

18.857.383

 
 

16.601.835

 
 

21,785,879

 
 

22.778.586

 
 

18.002.948

 
 

19,207,072

 
 

19.399.143

 
 

19.593.134

The Numbers 



18  

CMHC Challenges 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Recruiting and retention of workforce.
 With stagnant reimbursement rates and 

limited funding, it is a challenge to 
remain competitive for employees. 

 Psychiatry is especially challenging. 



19  

 
 

 
 

The CMHCs have played a critical role in accomplishing significant 
bed reductions in our state mental health hospitals, declining from 
1,003 in FY90 to 340 today. Unfortunately, there are now fewer 
private inpatient psychiatric beds available than in 1990. 

 
While bed days have decreased, our inpatient system is beyond 
capacity due to reductions in SGF revenues for the 
uninsured/underinsured and the closure of multiple private inpatient 
psychiatric units. 68% of admissions to state hospital are non- 
Medicaid. 

 
The CMHC system of care provides the opportunity for people to 
receive quality behavioral health services in their local communities. 

A System that Works 



Horizons Mental Health Center
Statement of Revenue and Expense

Prior Prior Yr Prior Prior Yr
Actual Budget Variance % Change Year Variance Actual Budget Variance % Change Year Variance

Total inpatient revenue
1,026,431    1,423,661    (397,230)    -27.90% 935,718       90,713        Revenue from outpatients 6,072,205      8,170,574    (2,098,369)    -25.68% 6,445,768    (373,563)    

Physician services revenue
1,026,431  1,423,661  (397,230)   -27.90% 935,718      90,713       Total patient revenue 6,072,205     8,170,574  (2,098,369)   -25.68% 6,445,768  (373,563)   

225,972       248,794       (22,822)      -9.2% 144,968       81,004       Contractual Adjustments 1,352,931      1,492,764    (139,833)       -9.4% 1,129,949    222,982      

27,138         49,005         (21,866)      -44.6% 45,672         (18,533)     Charity Care 144,256         294,029       (149,773)       -50.9% 241,113       (96,857)      

8,730           37,696         (28,966)      -76.8% 8,905           (175)           Other deductions 60,938           226,176       (165,238)       -73.1% 73,748         (12,809)      

28,295         41,466         (13,171)      -31.8% (5,646)          33,941       Provision for bad debt 188,540         248,794       (60,254)         -24.2% 158,669       29,871        

290,135      376,961      (86,825)     -162.4% 193,899      96,236       Total deductions from revenue 1,746,666     2,261,764  (515,098)      -157.6% 1,603,479  143,187    

736,296      1,046,700  (310,404)    -29.7% 741,819      (5,523)        Net patient revenue 4,325,539     5,908,811  (1,583,271)   -26.8% 4,842,289  (516,750)    

649,537       320,130       329,407      102.9% 301,884       347,653      Other operating revenue 2,892,155      1,915,645    976,510         51.0% 1,935,553    956,602      

1,385,833  1,366,830  19,002       73.24% 1,043,703  342,130    Total operating revenue 7,217,694     7,824,455  (606,761)      24.18% 6,777,843  439,852    

Expenses
691,969       840,929       (148,959)    -17.7% 670,177       21,792        Salaries 4,297,705      4,742,994    (445,290)       -9.4% 4,157,307    140,398      

22,303         18,750         3,553          19.0% 17,816         4,487          Purchased labor 133,767         112,500       21,267           18.9% 118,543       15,225        

225,125       236,100       (10,975)      -4.7% 224,534       591             Employee benefits 1,531,780      1,416,601    115,179         8.1% 1,272,644    259,136      

-               -               -             #DIV/0! -               -             Physician Fees -                 -               -                #DIV/0! -               -             

41,774         44,333         (2,559)        -5.8% 37,206         4,569          Rent 253,742         266,000       (12,258)         -4.6% 182,379       71,363        

16,160         13,866         2,294          16.5% 12,174         3,986          Utilities 78,785           83,196         (4,411)           -5.3% 70,291         8,493          

3,475           5,683           (2,208)        -38.9% 4,173           (698)           Maintenance 17,247           34,100         (16,853)         -49.4% 27,416         (10,169)      

35,117         40,943         (5,826)        -14.2% 37,461         (2,343)        Purchased services 213,527         245,660       (32,133)         -13.1% 247,180       (33,653)      

8,818           10,303         (1,485)        -14.4% 5,115           3,703          Other Supplies 43,314           61,816         (18,501)         -29.9% 54,994         (11,680)      

20,152         24,503         (4,351)        -17.8% 16,875         3,277          Computer software services 99,534           147,017       (47,483)         -32.3% 110,923       (11,389)      

30,617         53,965         (23,348)      -43.3% 63,378         (32,761)      Other 206,981         323,792       (116,811)       -36.1% 279,034       (72,054)      

1,095,510  1,289,375  (193,866)   -15.0% 1,088,908  6,602         Total expense 6,876,382     7,433,676  (557,294)      -7.5% 6,520,711  355,671    

290,323$    77,455$      212,868$  274.8% (45,205)$    335,527$  *EBIDA 341,312$      390,780$    (49,467)$      -12.7% 257,131$    84,181$    

20.9% 5.7% 15.3% 269.7% -4.3% 25.3% EBIDA as percent of net revenue 4.7% 5.0% -0.3% -5.3% 3.8% 0.9%

-               -               -             #DIV/0! -               -             Interest 10,076           -               10,076           #DIV/0! -               10,076        

19,650         26,161         (6,511)        -24.9% 13,160         6490.09 Depreciation 101,021         156,969       (55,947)         -35.64% 78,960         22061.69
270,673$    51,293$      219,379$  427.7% (58,365)$    329,037$  Operating margin 230,215$      233,811$    (3,596)$        -1.5% 178,172$    52,043$    

456,516$    12,500$      444,016      3552.1% 98,804$      357,712$    Investment return 835,451$      75,000$      760,451$       1013.9% 202,599$    632,852      

-                  -                  -             #DIV/0! -                  -             Contributions received -                     -                  -                    #DIV/0! -                  -             

396              1,500          (1,104)        -73.6% 3,075           (2,679)        Other 5,598             9,000          (3,402)           -37.8% 16,469         (10,871)      

456,912$    14,000$      442,912$  3163.66% 101,879$    355,033$  Total other nonoperating income 841,049$      84,000$      757,049$     901.25% 219,068$    621,981$  

727,585$    65,293$      662,291$  1014.3% 43,514$      684,070$  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenses 1,071,264$   317,811$    753,453$     237.1% 397,239$    674,024$  

19.53% 3.75% 15.78% -5.59% 25.1% Operating Margin % 3.19% 2.99% 0.20% 2.63% 0.6%

39.48% 4.73% 34.75% 3.80% 35.68% Excess (Deficiency) Percent 13.29% 4.02% 9.27% 5.68% 7.61%

For The Month and Year To Date Ended December 31, 2020

MTD YTD



2020

Mental Health Program Interactions by Quarter
Q1: 1748
Q2: 490 Please keep in mind programs shut down due to COVID beginning approximately 3/2020
Q3: 1386
Q4: 403

Average Length of Stay for SPMI in CY 2020
18.3 days

SPMI Participating in Programs
112 unique individuals

SPMI Bookings in 2020
249 individuals

Program Enrollments CY 2020
1590 enrollments
492 SPMI

30.90% SPMI of total enrollments

Page 1



Jail Data 2019 to 2020 Year Comparison  

 

Table 1: Please keep in mind programs shut down due to COVID beginning approximately 3/2020 

 

Table 2: From 2019 to 2020 we decreased average length of stay by days by 4.26% 

 

 



 

Table 3: Total bookings for CY 2019 (3835) and individuals flagged for MH (203) 5.29% of the total 

booking for 2019. 

 

 



Table 4: 

Total 

booking

s for 

CY 

2020 

(2903) 

and 

individ

uals 

flagged 

for MH 

(249) 

8.58% 

of the 

total 

booking 

for 

2020. 

 



Customer Satisfaction 
Survey Results
Horizons Mental Health Center

Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2021



Response rate comparison
91

2

86
4

83
4 91

7

90
7

90
5

88
8

88
9

10
95

10
32

98
8

12
54

11
20

11
33

11
21

11
06

97
8

93
0

85
9

11
71

99
5

10
14

99
0

99
1

84
5

80
1

73
5

94
2

83
4 86
0

85
0

83
8

405 375 349
446 415 417 408 402

YOUR APPOINTMENTS THE COURTESY & 
HELPFULNESS OF OUR 

STAFF

OUR COMMUNICATION 
WITH YOU

YOUR VISIT WITH THE 
PROVIDER

OUR FACILITY YOUR OVERALL 
SATISFACTION

WOULD YOU 
RECOMMEND US?

OVERALL AVERAGE

Total Number of Responses

Q3 FY18 Q2 FY19 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY20 Q2 FY21



65
7

77 87

33 33

9

90
8

85

12
5

40 35

1

86
0

64 72

38 34

5

63
2

81

10
4

56 42

9

375

13 17 15 7 2

HUTCHINSON KINGMAN PRATT ANTHONY MEDICINE LODGE OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY)

Responses By Location

Q3 FY18 Q2 FY19 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY20 Q2 FY21



Additional Survey Respondent Information

644

262

776

429

727

358

632

308

297

141

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

CONSUMER

PARENT/GUARDIAN

Who Completed the Survey

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18

561

274

46

3

693

389

58

6

648

346

58

5

555

284

46

2

271

119

20

4

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800

ON MY OWN

RECOMMENDED BY OTHERS

COURT ORDER

ADVERTISEMENT

Referral Source

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



22
8

13
3

19
1

11
2

23
0

25
6

20
5

25
2

15
7

30
6

21
5

15
8

25
5

14
9

29
4

18
5

15
5

20
7

10
8

24
6

91

64

105

60

104

LESS THAN 6 MONTHS 6 MONTHS - 1 YEAR 1 - 3 YEARS 3 - 5 YEARS MORE THAN 5 YEARS

Length of Time Receiving Services

Q3 FY18 Q2 FY19 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY20 Q2 FY21



Survey Questions
Your Appointments:
• Received your FIRST appointment within a 

reasonable amount of time
• Follow-up appointments were easy to make
• Appointments available at a convenient time
Telehealth Appointments:
• I could clearly communicate with my provider
• Overall I am satisfied with telehealth and found it 

helpful
• I would prefer to use telehealth over traditional 

office services
The Courtesy & Helpfulness of Our Staff:
• The person who took your call 
• The person who checked you in or assisted with 

paperwork
• The person who assisted you with billing or 

insurance
• The person who helped you with releases of 

information
Our Communication With You:
• Your phone calls answered promptly
• You were able to get advice or help when needed 

during office hours
• Your calls were returned in a timely manner
• You were able to get help if you had an emergency 

at night or on the weekends

Your Visit With the Provider:
• They were willing to listen carefully to your 

opinions and ideas
• Explained things in a way you could understand
• Involved you in developing a meaningful treatment 

plan and goals
• Took the time to answer your questions
• Took an adequate amount of time with you
Our Facility:
• Location is easily accessible
• Adequate parking
• Hours of operation convenient for you
• Horizons has been a comfortable place to receive 

services
Your Overall Satisfaction:
• Core values are the foundation of who we are and 

what we strive to be. How did our staff do in 
following our core values: Integrity – Compassion –
Accountability – Respect – Excellence

• Overall quality of care and services
• Degree to which treatment helped you deal with 

your problem/complaint
• Degree to which services have supported my 

efforts to become more self-sufficient
Would You Recommend Our Services to Others?



Average Rating by Question Groups
4.

53 4.
55

4.
48

4.
65

4.
61

4.
5

4.
89

4.
61

4.
54 4.

58

4.
52

4.
71

4.
62

4.
6

4.
93

4.
64

4.
53

4.
53

4.
49

4.
67

4.
56

4.
54

4.
90

4.
60

4.
52 4.

56

4.
47

4.
69

4.
58

4.
54

4.
86

4.
60

4.43

4.37

4.32

4.62

4.50

4.41

4.88

4.50

YOUR APPOINTMENTS THE COURTESY & 
HELPFULNESS OF OUR 

STAFF

OUR 
COMMUNICATION 

WITH YOU

YOUR VISIT WITH THE 
PROVIDER

OUR FACILITY YOUR OVERALL 
SATISFACTION

WOULD YOU 
RECOMMEND US?

OVERALL AVERAGE

Q3 FY18 Q2 FY19 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY20 Q2 FY21



Breakdown of Question Groups

4.55

4.52

4.51

4.55

4.55

4.51

4.59

4.53

4.48

4.54

4.55

4.48

4.43

4.47

4.39

4.25 4.3 4.35 4.4 4.45 4.5 4.55 4.6 4.65

FIRST APPT IN REASONABLE TIME

FOLLOW-UP APPT EASY TO MAKE

APPTS AVAILABLE AT CONVENIENT TIME

Your Appointments

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



4.49

4.19

3.9

3.6 3.7 3.8 3.9 4 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.6

I COULD CLEARLY COMMUNICATE WITH MY PROVIDER DURING THE VISIT

OVERALL I AM SATISFIED WITH TELEHEALTH AND FOUND IT HELPFUL

I WOULD PREFER TO USE TELEHEALTH OVER TRADITIONAL OFFICE SERVICES

Telehealth Appointments



4.53

4.61

4.48

4.57

4.56

4.65

4.53

4.59

4.5

4.6

4.48

4.55

4.55

4.59

4.54

4.58

4.33

4.47

4.32

4.37

4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.6 4.7

PERSON WHO TOOK YOUR CALL

PERSON WHO CHECKED YOU IN OR HELPED WITH PAPERWORK

PERSON WHO HELPED WITH BILLING/INSURANCE

PERSON WHO HELPED WITH RELEASES OF INFORMATION

Courtesy & Helpfulness of Staff 

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



4.5

4.53

4.45

4.44

4.57

4.59

4.49

4.42

4.52

4.53

4.47

4.42

4.50

4.53

4.45

4.40

4.36

4.40

4.31

4.20

4 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.6 4.7

PHONE CALLS ANSWERED PROMPTLY

ABILITY TO GET HELP OR ADVICE WHEN NEEDED (DURING OFFICE HOURS)

CALLS RETURNED TIMELY

ABILITY TO GET HELP FOR AN EMERGENCY AT NIGHT OR ON WEEKENDS

Our Communication With You

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



4.62

4.65

4.64

4.67

4.66

4.70

4.71

4.68

4.73

4.71

4.67

4.66

4.64

4.69

4.69

4.68

4.69

4.66

4.71

4.69

4.59

4.62

4.58

4.65

4.63

4.5 4.55 4.6 4.65 4.7 4.75

THEY WERE WILLING TO LISTEN CAREFULLY TO YOUR OPINIONS AND IDEAS

EXPLAINED THINGS IN A WAY YOU COULD UNDERSTAND

INVOLVED YOU IN DEVELOPING A MEANINGFUL TREATMENT PLAN AND GOALS

TOOK THE TIME TO ANSWER YOUR QUESTIONS

TOOK AN ADEQUATE AMOUNT OF TIME WITH YOU

Your Visit With Your Provider

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



4.65

4.63

4.54

4.6

4.65

4.65

4.55

4.62

4.56

4.57

4.54

4.56

4.58

4.63

4.53

4.57

4.52

4.53

4.46

4.49

4.35 4.4 4.45 4.5 4.55 4.6 4.65 4.7

LOCATION IS EASILY ACCESSIBLE

ADEQUATE PARKING

HOURS OF OPERATION CONVIENIENT FOR YOU

HORIZONS HAS BEEN A COMFORTABLE PLACE TO RECEIVE SERVICES

Our Facility

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



4.6

4.6

4.46

4.48

4.63

4.62

4.49

4.52

4.6

4.6

4.47

4.48

4.62

4.61

4.45

4.46

4.46

4.48

4.33

4.36

4.15 4.2 4.25 4.3 4.35 4.4 4.45 4.5 4.55 4.6 4.65

HOW DID OUR STAFF DO FOLLOWING OUR CORE VALUES?

OVERALL QUALITY OF CARE AND SERVICES

DEGREE TO WHICH TREATMENT HELPED YOU DEAL WITH YOUR PROBLEM/COMPLAINT

DEGREE TO WHICH SERVICES HAVE SUPPORTED YOUR EFFORTS TO BECOME MORE SELF-
SUFFICIENT

Overall Satisfaction

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



864

24

1101

20

966

24

822

19

396

12

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

YES

NO

Would You Recommend Us to Others?

Q2 FY21 Q2 FY20 Q4 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY18



Revised: 10/26/2020 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

 

 

INFORMATION: 

(From and Issue) 
Granicus Software – Peak Agenda Management 

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator 

AGENDA DATE: February 23, 2021 

BACKGROUND At a November 4, 2020 special commission work session, a demonstration from 
Granicus was presented to the commission.  Granicus is the company Reno 
County currently uses for our audio/visual software that allows for live edits and 
archiving of the commission meetings.  Another software that Granicus offers 
and complements the audio/visual software is called Peak Agenda Management.  
The software would allow for a more streamlined agenda process that saves staff 
time and makes it easier for people to request agenda items.  The software also 
enables us to be more transparent with the citizens.   
 
At the meeting on November 4, 2021, the county commission viewed a demo of 
the Peak Agenda, along with eComment and Recurring Captioning Services.  
The eComment addition to Peak Agenda allows citizens to provide comments on 
agenda items digitally.  The captioning services allows for the meeting videos to 
have closed captioning for those who are unable to hear the audio.    
 

ALL OPTIONS 

 

1. Approve and authorize the county administrator to sign an agreement for 
Peak Agenda Management and eComment with an annual cost of $9,840. 

2. Opting of adding captioning for hearing impaired audience at $15,950/year 
3. Deny the request to use Peak Agenda Management 

 
RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends option #1 and to have a discussion regarding option #2. 

FISCAL IMPACT The set-up and training of software from Granicus is being provided without 
charge.  The annual cost is an addition to what is currently paid to Granicus for 
the Media Manager and Live Manager software ($8,063/annually).  The 
operating budget can handle this added expenditure.  

 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #09D



 

 

 

granicus.com | info@granicus.com               page 1  

Reno County, KS                                                                                

Reno County Peak Implementation – Proposed timeline 

 

Working together on key project milestones will ensure the highest probability of mutual 

success leading to the implementation of Granicus’ GovMeeting Peak platform for 

Reno County. 

   

Below are key milestones, actions, notes, and target completion dates for review, and 

collaboration to complete.  This is a “living document” that will be revised, updated, 

and shared between both teams.  The dates were determined to be able to meet the 

goal of a April 26th, 2021 go live of GovMeeting Peak software. 

 

Milestone Reno 

Lead 

Granicus 

Lead 

Target 

Completion 

Actual 

Date 

Demo/Discussion with all 

decision makers 

Randy, 

Shonda 

Kim 10/30/20  

In-depth call with Granicus 

professional services team 

Randy, 

Shonda 

Kim 11/6/20  

Final Proposal review Randy, 

Shonda 

Kim 2/9/21  

Reno County Commission 

budget & proposal approval 

TBD Kim 2/23/21  

Submit signed contract to 

Granicus 

Randy Kim 3/1/21  

Project Deployment kick-off TBD- (PM) Professional 

Services 

3/8/21  

Go-Live with Peak TBD Professional 

Services/Kim 

4/26/2021  

 



Streamline Your Meeting Process with Peak
Intuitive and flexible cloud-based agenda management 
software for small to medium governments, Peak helps clerks 
recover valuable time and costs while gaining control of 
the agenda and meeting process.  It’s why clerks across the 
country put Peak at their fingertips.   

What If You Could…
  Get hours back in your day to focus on important 

initiatives by streamlining the agenda and meeting  
process?

  Reduce wasteful printing and paper costs by 
digitizing agenda preparation and distribution?

  Ensure regulatory compliance with ADA-friendly 
meeting materials and adherence to sunshine laws?

  Reduce time spent fielding public info requests by 
making information easily accessible to citizens?

DID YOU KNOW

50-75%
of staff time is wasted 
creating agendas and 
minutes manually?

The Peak Advantage
• Industry-leading 

customer support

• Sleek and intuitive design

• Unparalleled accessibility

• Innovative collaboration 
and communication tools

• Seamless integrations 
with Boards and 
Commissions, Video, 
Meeting Efficiency, 
VoteCast, govDelivery, 
and more.

It’s so much easier and less time-
consuming to create an agenda with Peak. 
The software has made the job easier — 
more fluid. The logistical improvements 
are fantastic.”
- Shane Pepe, Borough Manager, Borough of Emmaus, Penn.

govMeetings

For more information, visit granicus.com/solution/govmeetings or email us at info@granicus.com.

Peak
For easy agenda management 
- from prep to publish



About Granicus: More than 4,200 government agencies use Granicus to modernize their online services, 
web presence, and communications strategies. We offer seamless digital solutions that help government 
actively reach, inform, and engage citizens on the first unified civic engagement platform for government. 

For more information, visit granicus.com/solution/govmeetings or email us at info@granicus.com.

With Peak You Can…

Busy Clerks Choose Peak

• Generate designed agendas and minutes documents in seconds 
with a built-in template system.

• Route items through a sequential or concurrent approval 
process.

• Notify assigned users when new items are ready for their review. 

• Create unique item forms for each of your item types — 
resolutions, contracts, ordinances and more. 

• Publish agendas and minutes to your website in one click.

Simplify the agenda creation process

• Easily transition board members to digital agendas with the 
straightforward iLegislate app.

• Take notes, bookmark, and mark-up documents — each board 
member has their own version.

• Be well-prepared for meetings with research tools and access to 
recordings of past meeting. 

• Save thousands of dollars off paper and printing costs each 
month.

Move from paper to digital with iLegislate

• Automate publishing to an online, searchable web portal.

• Generate and publish ADA-friendly agendas and minutes for 
public consumption.

• Enable social media sharing for increased awareness.

• Send subscriber notifications to improve engagement.

Optimize accessibility and transparency

govMeetings



Boost Participation & Save Time
Community members are often too busy to attend public 
meetings, speak during public comment periods, and stay involved 
in the governing process. Instead, they choose other avenues to 
voice their opinions – like social media — making it difficult for 
agencies to collect and manage feedback.  

eComment is an online tool that makes participation easy and 
convenient for residents and city staff. Residents can review 
agenda item details and indicate their position on an item — from 
any device.  The result? Clerks save time while elected members 
get a better view of public sentiment. 

With eComment You Can…
  Encourage citizen participation by letting busy 

citizens provide online feedback. 

  Bring clarity to public opinion with reporting that 
shows how residents feel about specific initiatives. 

  Save clerks’ time with a solution that consolidates 
public comments then delivers them to elected 
officials.

  Shape the conversation by providing a single, official 
place for citizens to comment on issues. 

DID YOU KNOW

64% 
of citizens would engage 
with government if it were 
easier to do?

Features
• Collect online feedback

• Build Reports

• Compile & distribute feedback 
to elected officials

• Easily attach comments to the 
public record (optional)

• Let residents request to speak 
during meetings

Advantages
• Configure to your needs, e.g. 

turn on or off for specific items

• Maintain brevity & decorum 
with built-in safeguards

• Integrate seamlessly with 
govMeetings agenda 
management, iLegislate 
paperless agenda, and 
Meeting Efficiency solutions

govMeetings

For more information, visit granicus.com/solution/govmeetings or email us at info@granicus.com.

eComment
Online participation in public 
meetings



 

 

 

granicus.com | info@granicus.com               page 1  

  

 

Reno County, KS – ROI Executive Summary 
 

Reno County, KS has a goal to improve the efficiency in the creation of meeting 

agendas and minutes. The process currently demands more than 668 hours/year 

(estimate taken from internal information gathered from Reno County) from the Clerk 

and County Administrator. The Granicus Peak Agenda Management solution can 

reduce this time usage by up to 75%. This will allow the Clerk and other personnel to use 

that time to perform other job requirements and tasks beneficial to Reno County. 

 

The Return-on-Investment (ROI) and other financial calculations performed by this tool 

are based on data provided by Granicus customers and various assumptions and 

estimates only. The actual ROI realized by customers may vary from the estimates 

provided. Granicus offers this tool to assist customers with evaluating legislative 

management solutions, however, Granicus and Hobson & Company (the firm that 

created the tool) are not responsible for the accuracy of any estimates. 

 

 

 

 

 

Kim Ingino 

Account Manager 

Kim.ingino@ranicus.com  

mailto:Kim.ingino@ranicus.com


 

 

 

granicus.com | info@granicus.com               page 2  

 

Overall ROI 
 

3 Year 5 Year

Return on Investment 107% $ 27,191 $ 45,206

Months until investment pays back 6.9                  Monthly cost of waiting $ 926

3 Year Investment $ 31,216

3 Year Return $ 64,539

5 Year Investment $ 53,081

5 Year Return $ 114,061

Benefit Summary

Benefits by Value Driver

Streamline Internal Processes $ 17,234 96%

Drive Digitization $ 626 4%

Total $ 17,860 100%

Benefits by Product

govMeetings $ 17,860 100%

Total $ 17,860 100%

Benefit Detail
Benefit 5 Year Benefit Percent

Reduce time managing the agenda approval process $ 86,548 75.9%

Reduce time managing meeting minutes $ 18,464 16.2%

Reduce time printing and distributing agendas $ 5,049 4.4%

Reduce paper printing costs $ 4,000 3.5%

Total $ 114,061 100%

Return on Investment

3 Year

Year 1 Percent

Year 1 Percent

Net Present Value

5 Year

115%

96%

4%

Benefits by Value Driver

Streamline Internal Processes

Drive Digitization

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000  3 Year
Investment

 3 Year Return

 5 Year
Investment

 5 Year Return

100%

Benefits by Product

govMeetings



 

 

 

granicus.com | info@granicus.com               page 3  

 Key Inputs    
 

    

           

 Population       
 64,190 

 Avg. # of Council and Committee meetings/year    
 58 

 Avg. # of people who review Council and Committee mtg Agendas   10 

 Avg. # hours to print/distribute Agendas per Council and Committee meeting  1 

 Avg. # of pages of each Council and Committee meeting Agenda   45 

 Avg. # of copies printed (Council and Committee Agenda)   8 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Net Cash Flows

Net Cash Flows - By Value Driver 1                            1                            1                            1                            1                            

Net Cash Flows Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Streamline Internal Processes $ 17,234                  $ 22,188                  $ 22,854                  $ 23,539                  $ 24,246                  

Drive Digitization 626                       806                       831                       856                       881                       

Strengthen Citizen Engagement -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Benefits 17,860                  22,995                  23,684                  24,395                  25,127                  

Investment $ (10,200)                 $ (10,404)                 $ (10,612)                 $ (10,824)                 $ (11,041)                 

Net Cash Flows $ 7,660                    $ 12,591                  $ 13,072                  $ 13,571                  $ 14,086                  

Cash Flows - By Benefit

Streamline Internal Processes Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

$ 13,552                  $ 17,448                  $ 17,972                  $ 18,511                  $ 19,066                  

Reduce time printing and distributing agendas 791                       1,018                    1,048                    1,080                    1,112                    

Reduce time managing meeting minutes 2,891                    3,722                    3,834                    3,949                    4,067                    

Total Streamline Internal Processes $ 17,234                  $ 22,188                  $ 22,854                  $ 23,539                  $ 24,246                  

Drive Digitization

Reduce paper printing costs 626                       806                       831                       856                       881                       

Total Drive Digitization $ 626                       $ 806                       $ 831                       $ 856                       $ 881                       

Strengthen Citizen Engagement

Total Strengthen Citizen Engagement $ -                        $ -                        $ -                        $ -                        $ -                        

Cash Flows - By Product

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

govMeetings $ 17,860                  22,995                  23,684                  24,395                  25,127                  

$ 17,860                  $ 22,995                  $ 23,684                  $ 24,395                  $ 25,127                  

Investment

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

govMeetings

Annual recurring revenue - govMeetings $ 5,280                    $ 5,386                    $ 5,493                    $ 5,603                    $ 5,715                    

Annual recurring revenue - Minutes 3,780                    3,856                    3,933                    4,011                    4,092                    

Additional Options 1,140                    1,163                    1,186                    1,210                    1,234                    

One time Fees - Meeting and Agenda -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Investment $ 10,200                  $ 10,404                  $ 10,612                  $ 10,824                  $ 11,041                  

Reduce time managing the agenda approval process



 

 

 

granicus.com | info@granicus.com               page 4  

 
 

 

 

Avg. # of Council and Committee meetings/year 58                        
Avg. # of pages of each Council and Committee meeting Agenda 45                        
Avg. # of copies printed (Council and Committee Agenda) 8                           2.0                      
Avg. # Boards and Commissions meetings/year 58                        
Avg. # of pages of each Board/Commission meeting agenda -                       
Avg. # of copies printed (Boards & Commissions Agenda) -                       -                      
Average cost per page $ 0.05                     
Avg. $ spent on outside storage of old agenda/minutes/year $ -                       $ -                      

75%
Annual Benefit $ 1,044                   $ 261                     $ 783                

Validation of Key Assumptions

Reduce paper printing costs by 75%

Reduce paper printing costs 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-1 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

Sections: 
23-101 Purpose and Intent 
23-102 Applicability 
23-103 Definitions 
23-104 Circumstances Requiring Application of the CWECS 
23-105 Content of a Development Plan and Plan of Operation 
23-106 Documents, Plans, Studies, Reports, Other Permits 
23-107 Additional Required Topics to be Included in Submittals 
23-108 Special Regulations Applicable for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS 
23-109 Agreements and Requirements 
23-110 Requirements for a Zoning Permit 
23-111 Construction Requirements 
 
23-101 Purpose and Intent: 
 
The purpose of this Article is to ensure a regulatory means of facilitating wind energy development of a 
Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System within the unincorporated portion of Reno County having 
zoning jurisdiction by providing reasonable requirements for the submittal of proposals for the establishment 
of a CWECS to provide adequate information to the officials of Reno County charged with the responsibility 
to review said proposals. 
 
To the extent there are conflicts between the requirements of Article 23 and other provisions of the Reno 
County Zoning Regulations, it is intended that the requirements of Article 23 shall control the interpretation 
of the Zoning Regulations. 
 
23-102 Applicability: 
 
All CWECS development within this Article, as described herein, shall comply with the standards and 
procedures of this Article and those required for a Conditional Use Permit as stated in Articles 8 and 15.  It 
shall be understood the "timeline" restrictions in Articles 8 and 15 are not applicable to a CWECS project 
because of the overall time for the development and construction.   
 
Placement of a small Wind Energy Conversion System shall be permitted as an accessory use as defined in 
Article 9-102(4) and Article 9-103(4) of the Zoning Regulations. 
 
Article 20-104(2) of the Zoning Regulations shall not be used to modify, adjust, or change any requirement 
under Article 23. 
 
23-103 Definitions:   
 
1. Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System means an electrical generating facility that operates by 

converting the kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy and is comprised of one or more turbines 
and accessory facilities, including but not limited to, ancillary operational meteorological towers, 
overhead and underground communication and electrical transmission lines, transformers, substations, 
roads, administrative and operations buildings, turbines, supervisory control and data acquisition 
(SCADA) facilities, and other associated facilities. The energy may be used on-site or distributed into 
the electrical grid.  A CWECS is further defined as producing 100kW of electricity or greater. 

 
2. Participating landowner means an individual, a group of individuals, a trust, or other entity owning 

real property who or which has signed a lease agreement with the owner or operator of a commercial 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #09E



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-2 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

wind energy conversion system project for the placement of turbines, other project components on the 
real property, or otherwise agrees to participate in the wind energy project. 

 
3. Non-participating landowner means an individual, group of individuals, a trust, or other entity owning 

real property who or which has not signed a lease agreement with the owner or operator of a 
commercial wind energy conversion system project for the placement of turbines or other project 
components on the real property. 

 
4. Qualified third-party company means an independent individual or entity that is not owned by, 

operated by, or a subsidiary of the current owner or subsequent owners of a CWECS or a property 
owner within the project boundary, who is qualified to perform the required analysis and is agreed 
upon by the applicant and county commission. 

 
5. A turbine means the total structural components used to convert the wind's kinetic energy into 

electrical energy.   
 

6. The total height of the turbine means measuring from the elevation of the ground surface at the base 
of the turbine up to the height of the turbine measured at the highest point of the blade system during 
its rotation. 

 
7. Accessory building shall have the same meaning as defined in Article 1-104(4) of the Zoning 

Regulations. 
 
8. Principal building shall mean a primary residential structure.  A principal residential structure shall 

not include a guest house or buildings whose purpose is to store equipment, commodities, or animals. 
 

23-104 Circumstances Requiring Application of the CWECS Article: 
 
The following circumstances require application of this Article and sets standards and procedures within the 
designated Article: 
 
1. An application for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS; or 

 
2. An application for a conditional use permit for an expansion of a CWECS beyond the area previously 

approved by a conditional use permit. 
 

3. Each application for a conditional use permit shall include a written agreement by the Applicant to 
reimburse the County for all unusual and extraordinary expenses incurred by the County to process 
the application and conduct the public hearing. 

  
23-105 Content of a Development Plan and Plan of Operation: 
 
The information listed below shall be submitted with the conditional use permit application.  It shall be the 
duty of the Zoning Administrator to determine when a conditional use permit application is complete and ready 
to schedule for a public hearing.  All information listed below shall be submitted prior to the Planning 
Commission making a recommendation.  The Planning Commission or Board of County Commissioners may 
require additional information not listed below. 
 
1. A project map drawn at a scale of not less than 1” = 2,000’ showing the additional information as 

outlined in this Article 23-105 including the following: 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-3 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

A. All development plan requirements under Article 8-103 of the Zoning Regulations. 
 
B. Project boundary and the total acreage. 
 
C. The center point of each turbine and MET tower with Latitude/Longitude Coordinates. 
 
D. The location of the operation and maintenance facility of the project or any other facility to 

serve the project. 
 
E. The location of any temporary assembly areas or other areas used for the construction of the 

CWECS. 
 
F. All public roads, access roads, and temporary access roads serving the project. 
 
G. The project shall indicate compliance with all requirements contained in Article 23. 
 
H. A secondary project map drawn at a scaled of not greater than 1” = 600’ that shows each 

individual turbine site, and which also includes all other relevant information required by this 
Article. 

 
I. Land identified as a special flood hazard area. 
 
J. Land identified by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism or U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service as a wetland, native vegetation area, wildlife habitat, or critical species habitat 
worthy of special consideration or protection. 

 
K. All required setbacks and requirements around land uses as described in Article 23. 

 
2. A general project introduction and plan of operation that describes the total number of proposed 

turbines, alternate turbine sites, total height of the turbines from the ground to the tip of the blade, 
meteorological towers, operation and maintenance facility, temporary construction sites, number of 
participating property owners, total acreage of the project, miles of new access roads, anticipated 
construction schedule, and other relevant information as deemed appropriate by the applicant or as 
required by county staff, the Planning Commission, or Board of County Commissioners. 

 
23-106 Documents, Plans, Studies, Reports, Other Permits: 
 
The information listed below shall be submitted with the conditional use permit application and used to 
evaluate compliance with the Zoning Regulations.  The Planning Commission or Board of County 
Commissioners may require additional information not listed in Article 23-106 or conduct separate studies for 
the purpose of evaluating the proposed conditional use permit.  Payment for the information cost may be 
negotiated in the Development Agreement. 
 
1. Documentation acceptable to the County that the Applicant has signed lease agreements currently in 

effect to use the land in the manner requested.  The Applicant may redact sensitive financial or 
confidential information. 

 
2. List of adjacent property owners within the then current minimum zoning regulation requirement of 

the subject property boundary proposed to receive a turbine(s), MET tower(s), the operation and 
maintenance facility, or a temporary use associated with the project.  The list of adjacent property 
owners shall be from the subject property boundary, not from the lease area.  The list of adjacent 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-4 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

property owners shall be sent electronically, be in an Excel Spreadsheet format and contain the 
property owner’s name, mailing address of the owner, physical address of the property, and parcel 
identification number (PIN). 
 

3. An expected economic impact report to the County which assumes the proposed project is approved 
and constructed as proposed on the conditional use permit application.  The report shall be prepared 
by an independent third-party company or four-year college institution. 

 
4. An acoustic study prepared by an independent third-party company.  The study shall include maps and 

charts that indicate the anticipated sound level expected at each principal building and explain the 
methodology used to compute the anticipated sound levels. 

 
5. A shadow flicker study prepared by an independent third-party company.  The study shall include 

maps and charts that indicate the anticipated amount of shadow flicker expected at each principal 
building and explains the methodology used to compute the anticipated shadow flicker.  The study 
shall show the anticipated number of hours per year a principal building will receive shadow flicker, 
the time of day, and time of year. 
 

6. A written document from the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism (KDWPT) or its 
successor indicating the applicant has contacted the agency regarding the proposed CWECS.  The 
document should state KDWPT has been contacted by the applicant regarding the proposal and has 
reviewed or is currently reviewing the proposal for any concerns regarding the operations of KDWPT. 
 

7. All setback, noise or shadow flicker waivers are to be executed by all owners of an affected parcel.  
All such waivers shall be notarized and submitted with the conditional use permit application. 
 

8. A report shall be conducted by a third-party company on existing environment concerns and filed with 
the conditional use permit application.  The report should include, but not be limited to, information 
regarding: 

A. Wildlife habitats, native prairie grass, and vegetation information relevant to the project site. 
 

B. An avian study to include all types of Eagles, Whooping Cranes, and other sensitive species 
as affected by the project.  The plan should include a discussion on bird migration and the 
potential for bird strikes. 

 
C. Flora - vegetation species, threatened species (officially listed), critical habitat and habitat 

conditions for such species relevant to the project site. 
 

D. Fauna - species, habitat assessment, threatened species (officially listed), migratory species, 
critical habitat, and habitat conditions for such species. 

 
E. Geo-conservation - sites of geo-conservation significance listed on the state or national 

database. 
 

F. Special flood hazard areas and wetland areas identified on the FSA Wetland Map. 
 

23-107 Additional Required Topics to be Included in Submittals: 
 
In addition to the requirements of Article 8, an application for a CWECS project shall address specific issues 
related with the project that include, but are not limited to, the following: 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-5 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

1. In addition to strict conformance to all performance standards and development plan requirements as 
detailed in the Reno County Zoning Regulations, the development plan shall address the following: 

 
A. The "boundary" of the project shall be the properties included within the "leased lands" on 

which the CWECS is proposed to be constructed. The specific siting of individual components 
of the CWECS, including turbines, supporting structures, and all other aspects which entail a 
complete CWECS as recognized within the industry, may be included conceptually within the 
development plan and are permitted to be moved and adjusted as necessary during the design 
and construction process without modifications to the approved development plan, so long as 
new lands are not added to the original "boundary"  of the CWECS and the relocation conforms 
to all requirements of Article 23.  Any relocation of individual components contrary to the 
approved site plan shall be identified on a revised site plan and submitted to the Public Works 
Department – Planning and Zoning Division for review and approval. 

 
B. All setback designations herein, when referenced as 'total height", shall mean "Total Tip 

Height", which is the total height of the turbine measured at the highest point of the blade 
system during its rotation, or with respect to any other structure including a meteorological 
tower, its total height.  All horizontal setbacks shall be measured from the center point of the 
turbine to the edge point from which the setback is required. 

 
2. Setbacks: 
 

A. No turbine shall be located closer than 2,000 3,000 feet or four six times the height of the 
turbine whichever is greater from a participating or non-participating principal building.  A 
principal building landowner may waive the setback requirement.  No waiver shall result in a 
setback of less than the height of the turbine plus 50 feet. 

 
B. No turbine shall be located closer than the total height of the turbine plus 50 feet from an 

accessory building, property line, or road right-of-way line. 
 

C. A private airstrip is defined as a location that is registered with the Kansas Department of 
 Transportation and Federal Aviation Administration, appears on aeronautical charts, and has 
 a landing surface(es) which is/are maintained and capable of providing a safe landing for 
 aircraft.  All such requirements must be in effect at the time a conditional use permit 
 application is accepted by the county staff as being complete. 
 

D. Setbacks from a public airport and/or private airstrip shall be two (2) nautical miles, calculated 
as 12,160 feet, from the approach ends of the runway and then by 1.5 nautical miles, calculated 
as 9,120 feet from the upwind and downwind sides of the runway.  

 
E. A private airport/private airstrip owner may waive the setback requirement for a parcel 

identified in Article 23-107(2)(E)(D).  All other requirements in Article 23 shall be enforced. 
 

F. No turbine may be located within any recorded easement.  The applicant shall consult with the 
 owner of an easement to eliminate any blanket easements on tracts of land and to establish a 
 defined legal description for the easement. 
 

G. Properties owned or managed by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism 
(KDWPT) or any wildlife refuge owned or managed by the United States of America tend to 
concentrate wildlife to an area due to the habitat enhancements conducted on a property. These  

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-6 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

lands are important wildlife migration corridors and migration staging areas.  To avoid 
disruption of these areas, no turbine shall be located within three (3) miles of a parcel owned 
or managed by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism or the United States 
of America. Compliance with all other setback requirements is required.  KDWPT or the 
United States of America may issue a waiver of this requirement for any parcel within the 
three-mile requirement. 

 
H. In order to provide for an incorporated city to extend its corporate boundary and increase its 
 tax base, nNo turbine shall be located within one mile of an incorporated city boundary at the 
 time a conditional use permit application is accepted by county staff as being complete.  A 
 city’s extra-territorial zoning jurisdiction (ETJ) is not recognized as a city’s official corporate 
 boundary. 
 
I. If during construction a turbine site is determined to be adversely impacted after discovered 

environmental or other factors legally preventing its use, the applicant shall have the right to 
relocate a turbine on the parcel.  The relocated turbine shall still comply with all applicable 
requirements of Article 23 and all conditions of approval associated with the conditional use 
permit. 
 

3. Noise: 
 
A. An acoustic assessment analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required 

with a conditional use permit application. The acoustic study shall analyze the expected 
audible noise level on a one (1) hour continuous sound level in decibels (Leq) basis at each 
primary occupied residential structure within the project boundary and explain the 
methodology used to achieve the results of the study.   

 
B. To assist in minimizing noise generated by the turbine, the applicant should consider using 

shall use turbine blades that are equipped with Low Noise Trailing Edge (LNTE) technology 
and blade serrations or other available noise reduction technology. 

 
C. The maximum received sound level shall not be more than 45 decibels(dBA) one (1) hour Leq 

at every participating and non-participating principal building and be measured at the nearest 
wall of the principal building.  A principal building shall not include an accessory structure or 
guest house as defined by the Reno County Zoning Regulations. [45 decibels during the day 
and 40 decibels during the night] (FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION). 

 
D. A participating or non-participating landowner may waive the decibel levels exceeding the 

  requirements of this section. 

4. Shadow Flicker: 

A. Shadow flicker analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required with a 
conditional use permit application.  The shadow flicker study shall analyze the expected 
annual number of hours and the specific times the shadow flicker is expected to occur at each 
principal building within the project boundary and explain the methodology used to achieve 
the results of the study. 

 
B. To minimize the effects of shadow flicker, the applicant shall utilize the data from the shadow 

flicker report to assist landowners in reducing the number of hours of shadow flicker to the 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-7 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

minimum requirement of the zoning regulations. The applicant and landowner shall 
collaborate and decide the best means to reducing the amount of shadow flicker. 

 
C. The maximum number of shadow flicker hours per year a participating or non-participating 

principal building shall receive is 30. [20 or 20 minutes per day. (FOR FURTHER 
DISCUSSION). 
 

D. A participating or non-participating landowner may waive the shadow flicker limit 
requirement. 

 
5. Communication Lines: 
 

A. Communication lines and power collection lines are to be installed underground in the area 
covered by the CUP with use of directional boring, horizontal drilling, micro-tunneling, 
vibrating plowing, narrow trench ditching and other techniques in the construction of facilities.  
Such processes are intended to result in the least amount of disruption and damage as possible 
to the surface soil and natural features.  Said lines are to be located under or at the edge of 
turbine access roads. When conditions on-site are found to make installation of underground 
supporting lines impractical or infeasible, for example the presence of existing underground 
lines or pipelines that conflict with such type of construction, above ground transmission lines 
may be used only in public rights-of-way, easements or other legal documents dedicated for 
such purposes. 

 
B. The applicant shall contact the Reno County Emergency Management Director to coordinate 

meetings with other local emergency service personnel to develop a plan to address any 
potential interruptions in 911 calls being blocked due to the construction of turbines.  The 
applicant shall submit a written report detailing the plan to mitigate any potential interruption 
in services. 

 
C. Any installation of above ground or below ground communication lines or power collection 

lines within a Special Flood Hazard Area will require a floodplain development permit. 
 

6. Rotor Blades: 
 

A. The lowest point of the rotor blades shall be at least 50 feet above ground level at the base of 
each turbine. 

 
B. Rotor blades shall be painted a non-reflective neutral color such as white or grey.  The rotor 

blades shall be painted the same color as the turbine and nacelle. 
 
C. Rotor blades shall not display company names, markings, or advertising logos. 

 
7. Lubricants and Hazardous Materials: 
 

All lubricants and/or hazardous materials to be located on the premises in connection with the CWECS 
facility shall be kept and transported in accordance with all state and Federal regulations. 

 
8. Lighting: 
 

A. Lighting of the turbines shall utilize the current Aircraft Detection Lighting System (ADLS) 
or other similar or advanced technology. 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-8 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

B. Any other lighting requirements on the turbines shall comply with, but not exceed, the 
minimum FAA requirements. 

  
C. White strobe lights on the turbines or any other aspect of the project are prohibited. 
 
D. Lights associated with the operation and maintenance facility, or other aspects of the project 

shall be directed so as not to shine directly on any adjacent property line or public road. 
 
E. Security and safety lighting shall be designed to shield the glare onto a property or public road. 

 
9. Turbines and Nacelles: 
 

A. Structures for turbines shall be self-supporting tubular towers painted a neutral color such as 
a white or grey.  The structure shall be painted the same color as the rotor blades. 

 
B. Lattice structures or other types of design are prohibited. 
 
C. A turbine and nacelle shall not display any advertising except for identification of the 

manufacturer.  Any signs, flags, streamers, or similar items are prohibited.  Other warning 
signs, placards, or required signs by a government agency are excluded from this prohibition. 

 
D. To aid in preventing unauthorized climbing of the turbine, all ladder rungs or other potential 

climbing assistance objects shall be removed up to 15 feet above the ground surface. 
 
E. Telecommunication antennas or other type of antennas used for transmission of radio signals 

not associated with a CWECS are prohibited. 
 
10. Operation Requirements: 
 

A. The CWECS, and its associated facilities, shall not be operated so as to cause microwave, 
television, radio,  telecommunication, or navigation interference contrary to Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC) regulations or other laws to occupied structures existing 
as of the date of the CUP approval.  In the event the CWECS and its associated facilities or its 
operations cause such interference, the applicant shall take timely measures necessary to 
correct the problem. 

 
B. Documentation shall be submitted by the applicant indicating compliance with minimum FCC 

Regulations. 
 
11. Ice Throw: 

 
An ice throw analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required with a conditional 
use permit application.  The ice throw study shall analyze the conditions which may cause ice to be 
thrown off an in-motion turbine blade and toward an occupied structure within the project boundary.  
The study should explain the methodology used in evaluating the risk of damage to occupied principal 
buildings.  Also included in the study should be the manufacturer’s setback distances related to in-
motion ice throws and the type of ice monitoring sensors and devices installed in each turbine and the 
potential maximum distance ice could be thrown from an in-motion turbine blade. 
 
 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-9 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

12. Soil Erosion, Sediment Control, Stormwater Runoff, and Wetlands: 
 

The Applicant shall develop a Soil Erosion, Sediment Control and Stormwater Runoff Plan.  The Plan 
shall address what type of erosion control measures will be implemented during each phase of the 
project.  The Plan shall address the following concerns: 
 
A. Grading. 
 
B. Construction and drainage of access roads and turbine pads. 
 
C. Necessary soil information. 
 
D. Design features to maintain downstream water quality. 
 
E. Re-vegetation of disturbed area to ensure slope stability. 
 
F. Restoration of the site after temporary project activities have ended. 
 
G. Creation of a new wetland area that is equal to or greater than any wetland area that is filled 

in or destroyed. 
 
H. Disposal or storage of excavated materials. 
 
I. Protecting exposed soil. 
 
J. Stabilizing restored material and removal of silt fences or barriers when the area is stabilized. 
 
K. Maintenance of erosion control measures throughout the life of the project. 
 
If required, the Applicant shall obtain an erosion control permit for the project from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment (KDHE).  The approved erosion control permit shall be 
submitted prior to the issuance of a zoning permit.  The measures listed above shall be the minimum 
required under the issued KDHE permit. 
 

13. Special Flood Hazard Areas: 
 

A. If required, the Applicant shall obtain a floodplain development permit from the Kansas 
Department of Agriculture – Division of Water Resources, for any development identified as 
being located in a special flood hazard area.  Such development could include, but not be 
limited to, the placement of a turbine, construction of a road, location of electrical lines under 
a stream, or location of a building. 

 
B. Prior to starting construction activities, the applicant shall obtain a local floodplain 

development permit for all construction in the special flood hazard area prior to the issuance 
of a zoning permit or for any portion of the project not requiring a zoning permit. 

 
C. To the extent feasible, the design of the CWECS project should have a minimal impact of land 

identified as within a special flood hazard area.  It is expected of the applicant to locate all 
turbines and buildings out of the special flood hazard area so the project will have a minimum 
impact on the special flood hazard area. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-10 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

23-108 Special Regulations Applicable for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS: 
 
The timeline restrictions in Article 8 and Article 15 are not applicable to a CWECS project because of the 
overall length of time necessary for the development and construction of the project.  With respect to a CWECS 
project approved after the adoption of this section: 
 
1. For all Conditional Use Permits approved for a CWECS project, a zoning permit shall be applied for 

within two (2) years of the approved CUP.  Approval of the CUP is effective (the “EFFECTIVE 
DATE”) when the County Commissioners’ Resolution approving the same is published in the official 
county newspaper.  If construction of the project cannot be commenced within that two (2) year period, 
the applicant may obtain a single one-year extension upon the submission of a written report to the 
Board of County Commissioners describing the reason(s) for the delay and the plan for commencing 
construction within the one-year extension period.  The one-year extension must be approved prior to 
the expiration of the original two-year period. 
 

2.  For all Conditional Use Permits approved for a CWECS project, such permit shall be permitted to 
continue, as-long-as all conditions placed on the permit are met. However, if the CWECS project 
construction has not commenced within two (2) years following approval of the CUP or any extension 
thereof as aforesaid, the CUP shall have expired, and the development plan is forfeited.   In such event, 
the Applicant will not be permitted to pursue the Development Plan until a new application is 
submitted, a new public hearing held, and a new CUP is approved. 

 
23-109  Agreements and Requirements: 
 
Prior to the issuance of the zoning permits, the Applicant of the CWECS and the Board of County 
Commissioners shall enter into a Development Agreement with respect to the subject matters outlined below 
under such terms and conditions acceptable to the Board of County Commissioners.  A Development 
Agreement shall be executed by the Applicant and the Board of County Commissioners within 120 days 
following the EFFECTIVE DATE or the CUP approval will have terminated at the discretion of the Board of 
County Commissioners.  This list of agreements and specific requirements can be supplemented or removed 
by mutual agreement of both parties. 
 
The following subject matters may be addressed, in the discretion of the County Commissioners, in a 
Development Agreement or series of Development Agreements and shall not be considered exclusive of all 
such matters: 
 
1. A Road Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Agreement. 

 
The Road Maintenance Agreement may include, but shall not be limited to, such topics as: 
 
A. Designation of the public roads used for transportation routes for construction and 

maintenance of the CWECS shall be included within the mandatory Road Maintenance 
Agreement specified in these Regulations. 

 
B. The applicant shall receive an Oversized/Overweight permit from the Reno County Public 

Works Department for transporting CWECS components that are over the legal weight, width, 
or length limit.  A proposed route shall be submitted on the Oversized/Overweight Permit for 
transportation routes by the applicant.  The transportation route shall be approved by the Public 
Works Department by signature on the permit form. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-11 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

C. Applicant shall construct the smallest number of turbine access roads as reasonably feasible.  
Access roads shall be low profile roads so farming equipment can cross them.  Where an 
access road crosses a stream or drainageway, it shall be designed and constructed so runoff 
from the upper portions of the watershed can readily flow to the lower portion of the 
watershed.  Where an access road crosses a stream or drainage way identified as a Special 
Flood Hazard Area, the applicant shall obtain a floodplain development permit from the state 
and county. 

 
2. A Decommissioning Agreement with the Board of County Commissioners pertaining to CWECS 

improvements. 
 

The Decommission Agreement may include, but shall not be limited to, such topics as: 
 
A. Removal of the turbine and nacelle. 

 
B. Removal of a portion of the concrete base down to a minimum of four feet below ground 

surface. 
 

C. Replacing the two bottom feet with subsoil composed of sand, silt, and clay materials and the 
top two feet with topsoil suitable for agriculture purposes. 

 
D. Removal of access roads. 

 
E. Re-seeding of disturbed areas. 
 

F. Timeline for removal. 
 

G. Removal of electrical equipment. 
 

H. Recognition of a landowner’s right to request access roads be left intact. 
 

I. Recognition of a landowner’s right to be satisfied with the decommission efforts of the 
applicant or a hired contractor. 

 
J. A discussion of Additional circumstances which may require the decommissioning of a 

turbine(s). 
 
3. An Indemnification Agreement: 
 

An Indemnification Agreement with the County throughout the life of the project and a policy of 
general liability insurance with policy limits satisfactory to the Board of County Commissioners which 
identifies the County as an additional insured. 
 

4. A Dispute and Mitigation Agreement: 
 

A Dispute and Mitigation Agreement procedure and resolution process by which the Developer shall 
address complaints by landowners or other affected parties regarding the project from construction to 
operation and throughout the life of the project. 
 
 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-12 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

5. A Bird Strike and Reporting Agreement: 
 
A Bird Strike and Reporting Agreement may be established and include an annual report submitted to 
the County Commissioners indicating all reported bird strikes related to the project. 

 
6. Professional Certification Agreement: 

 
A written certification by a licensed and qualified professional engineer, approved by the County, that 
each turbine location complies with all setback requirements. 

 
7. A Payment In lieu of Tax Agreement (PILOT): 

 
An agreement which adequately compensates the County for governmental services provided in the 
project boundary during a ten-year period of tax exemption. 
 

8. Fire Safety, and Rescue, and Hazardous Material Plan: 
 
The Plan shall be reviewed by the Emergency Management Director.  Within the Plan, the applicant 
shall identify the potential fire risk associated with the project, including both prescribed burning and 
non-prescribed burning (natural or accidental).  The Plan shall address fire within the project boundary, 
fire escaping from the site, and the effects of a fire originating from outside the site.  The plan shall 
demonstrate how the CWECS and equipment, environment, and private properties are protected from 
fire and hazardous materials. 
 

9. Surety Agreement: 
 
The applicant shall provide appropriate surety for the life of the project satisfactory to the Board of 
County Commissioners. 
 

10. Transfer of Ownership: 
 

If ownership of the CWECS is transferred from the CWECS Applicant identified in the original 
permitting documents to any entity, the new owner shall be responsible and accountable for the terms 
and conditions of the approved Conditional Use Permit, the Development Agreement, other applicable 
agreements, the zoning permit requirements, and all applicable requirements of the Zoning and 
Subdivision Regulations.  Notice of such transfer and acknowledgement by the new owner of 
compliance obligations shall be provided to the Zoning Administrator and the Board of County 
Commissioners. 
 

23-110 Requirements for Zoning Permit: 
 
If applicable, the following requirements shall be met to obtain a zoning permit from the County: 
 
1. No zoning permit application shall be accepted by the County until all required agreements listed under 

Article 23-109 between the Applicant and the County have been properly executed by the Applicant 
and the County. 
 

2. A zoning permit shall be required for the construction of each turbine and building within the approved 
CWECS accompanied by the payment of all fees as established by the County.  Construction shall be 
permitted to begin as outlined in the Development Agreement. 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-13 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

3. A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPP) and NPDES permit from the Kansas Department of 
Health and Environment shall be finalized and submitted prior to the issuance of a zoning permit and 
the start of construction. 

 
4. Filing and maintaining a current FAA Determination of No-Hazard to Air Navigation document 

verifying each turbine, when constructed according to the approved development plan, will not 
constitute a hazard to aircraft. 

 
5. Oversized/overweight permit from the Public Works Department. 

 
6. Wastewater and well permits from the Health Department. 

 
7. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 permit. 

 
8. Kansas Department of Agriculture – Division of Water Resources stream obstruction and floodplain 

fill permit. 
 

9. The application for a zoning permit shall include, but not be limited to, a site plan showing the 
following information: 

 
A. The location of the structure or turbine and any other onsite facilities such as a control room 

or transformer on a survey prepared by a registered land surveyor showing the distance from 
the property lines.  The floodplain boundary (where applicable) should also be located on the 
survey.  The survey showing the turbine location submitted with the CUP application may be 
used provided the location of the turbine has not been re-located from the approved 
development plan. 

 
B. The turbine number and megawatt capacity. 

 
C. The location of above ground and below ground transmission lines. 

 
D. The location of the interior access road. 

 
E. An outline of any proposed site preparation activities involving removal of vegetation, 

excavation of soil, locations of soil stockpile, and restoration plans for the site after 
construction concludes. 

 
F.   The approved state and local floodplain development permits (where applicable). 
 

23-111 Construction Requirements: 
 
1. The CWECS Applicant shall inform all employees, contractors and others involved in the construction 

of the CWECS project of the terms and conditions of the approved Conditional Use Permit.  Violations 
of the conditions associated with the Conditional Use Permit are the responsibility of the CWECS 
Applicant, not the landowner. 
 

2. The County retains the authority to enter into a contract with a structural engineering firm licensed by 
the State of Kansas Board of Technical Professions to offer engineering services to the County as 
defined by the Development Agreement.  Documentation regarding each approved permit or 
inspection shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator.  Payment for the costs incurred by the County 
from the engineering firm shall be negotiated through the Development Agreement. 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-14 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

3. Confirmation from an engineering company the turbines comply with the development plan, the 
zoning regulations, and the conditions associated with the approved Conditional Use Permit. 
 

4. Prior to the start of, and continuously throughout construction and site restoration, the CWECS 
Applicant shall designate a field representative responsible for overseeing compliance with the 
conditions of the CUP.  The field representative shall be accessible by telephone and email as needed 
by the Zoning Administrator or his designee.  The field representative shall provide an address, phone 
number, and emergency phone number to the Zoning Administrator.  The CWECS Applicant shall 
notify the Zoning Administrator should a change be made in the field representative.   
 

5. Any off-site construction needs outside of the permitted CWECS Conditional Use Permit shall comply 
with all applicable Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. 
 

6. The CWECS Applicant, or its construction company, shall disturb or clear a site only to the extent 
necessary to assure suitable access for construction, safe operation, and maintenance of the CWECS. 
The contractor shall minimize the removal of trees and shall not remove groves of trees or hedgerows 
(shelter belts) without approval of the affected landowner.  During site clearance and construction, silt 
fences and other temporary erosion controls, as required by the KDHE erosion control permit, shall be 
installed and left in place until new vegetation covers the ground around the turbines. 
 

7. Cleanup: 
 
The CWECS Applicant, or its construction company, shall remove all waste, scrap, and temporary 
erosion control measures that are the product of construction, operation, restoration, and maintenance 
from the site and properly dispose of it upon completion of each turbine. 

 
8. Operation & Maintenance: 
 

The CWECS Applicant shall file the following information with the Zoning Administrator: 
 

A. Operation and maintenance requirements (including the frequency of maintenance activities) 
for the turbines and transmission lines. 

 
B. The required width of transmission line easements and any necessary restrictions on land use 

development, buildings, and access within the easement. 
 

C. Any restrictions on participating property owner land uses, height of buildings, or location of 
building. 
 

 


	02-23-2021 AGENDA.pdf (p.1-2)
	07C ChangeOrders.pdf (p.3-53)
	07D Minutes-Dec20-Jan21.pdf (p.54-106)
	Memo
	December 2020
	January 2021

	07E ApptHayesTwpClerk.pdf (p.107-109)
	07F Horizons Board Appoint Karla Nichols.pdf (p.110)
	07G PW DodgeRam46892.pdf (p.111-115)
	07H PW Trailer56995.pdf (p.116-121)
	07I PW Tractor63300.pdf (p.122-128)
	07J PW TractorBoom126142.pdf (p.129-138)
	07K PW TrackExcavator173561.22.pdf (p.139-146)
	07L PW JDMower6150.pdf (p.147-149)
	07M GLMV Proposal.pdf (p.150-154)
	GLMV Memo.pdf (p.1)
	19139R21001_Proposal_Reno Cnty Crt Hs Space Utilization Study.pdf (p.2-5)

	08 CDBG-CloseOut.pdf (p.155-157)
	09A NoxWeedAnnualMgmtEradicationReport.pdf (p.158-163)
	09B EM update 2021 Year.pdf (p.164-169)
	09C Horizons Qrtrly Report.pdf (p.170-209)
	HorizonsFY21Q2 Reno County Commission Rpt.pdf (p.1-2)
	Horizons 1 orientation of CMHC system of care.pdf (p.3-20)
	Horizons 3 Dec. 2020 financial statement.pdf (p.21)
	Horizons 6 2020 Jail Data.xlsx.pdf (p.22)
	Horizons 6 Jail Data 2019 to 2020 Yr Comparison.pdf (p.23-25)
	Horizons 7 Cust Satisfaction Board Rpt Jan 2021.pdf (p.26-40)
	Customer Satisfaction Survey Results
	Response rate comparison
	Slide Number 3
	Additional Survey Respondent Information
	Slide Number 5
	Survey Questions
	Average Rating by Question Groups
	Breakdown of Question Groups
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15


	09D Peak Agenda Software.pdf (p.210-218)
	Memo for Granicus.pdf (p.1)
	Reno County KS - Proposed Peak timeline.pdf (p.2)
	Product Sheet- govMeetings Peak (2).pdf (p.3-4)
	Product Sheet- eComment.pdf (p.5)
	Reno County KS - Peak ROI Executive Summary.pdf (p.6-9)

	09E CWECS Proposed DRAFT - 02-09-21.pdf (p.219-232)

